ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 10, 2003
1: 05 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representati ve Hugh Fate, Co-Chair
Representative Beverly Masek, Vice Chair
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Cheryll Heinze
Representative Bob Lynn

Representative Kelly Wl f

Representative David CGuttenberg
Representative Beth Kerttul a

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al l nmenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

OVERVI EW  DEPARTMENT OF FI SH AND GAME
TAPES

03-4, SIDE(S) A &B

COCHAIR MKE CHENAULT convened the neeting of the House

Resources Standing Commttee at 1:05 p.m Represent ati ves
Chenault, Fate, Masek, Gatto, Heinze, Lynn, WIf, and Guttenberg
were present at the call to order. Representative Kerttula

arrived as the neeting was in progress.
SUMVARY OF | NFORVATI ON
Nunber 0144

KEVIN BROOKS, Director, Division of Admnistrative Services,
Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane (ADF&G, gave a breakdown of

the six divisions within the departnent. He indicated the
department has an operating budget of [$135] million, with very
little comng from the general fund: about $30 nmillion cones

fromthe general fund; $50 million comes from federal funds; $25
mllion cones from ADF&G w th some user fees from sport fishing
and conmercial fishing; and ADF&G collects fees on guns,

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- February 10, 2003



amunition, tackle, et cetera, and fees for the sale of fishing
and hunting licenses. One strength of the programis that it's
on-site and available in nmore than 40 communities across the
state to help nmanage the resource. He further discussed the
adm nistrative services of the departnment and indicated that
there are 1,800 positions, which double in the sumer nonths.

Number 0813

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO expressed disappointnent in not having
Kevin Duffy, acting conm ssioner of ADF&G available to speak to
the commttee and address his expectation for the departnent to
manage things nore efficiently.

MR. BROOKS apol ogi zed on behalf of M. Duffy and explained that
the conm ssioners were called to a conference with the governor.

Number 1003

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK expressed interest in know ng what anount
of revenue the state nade on the king sal non stanp.

MR. BROOKS said he would provide a spreadsheet for 2002.

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK said she'd be interested in information
specifically for the Upper Susitna drainage area and for an
update on the Pittnan-Robertson funds.

Nunber 1133

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked about the efficiencies of ADF&G and
said at present they were |ess than acceptable. He requested a
copy of the departnment's social and econom c inpact study on the
Kenai king salnmon run, which cost the state $40, 000. He was
interested in knowing when the study would be nmade public and
indicated the study should be nade available to the Board of
Fi sheries and not try to circunvent the public process.

Nunmber 1263

KELLY HEPLER, Director, Di vision of Spor t Fi sh, Al aska
Department of Fish and Gane, said the division planned to
provide two bodies of science, and that the contract to the
board itemwas not in the budget survey due this week.

Nunber 1420

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- February 10, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG said it was a static overview w thout
t he budget and a view of where the new admi nistration i s going.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO tal ked about Pr oj ect WLD and the
educational program goals for children in kindergarten through
12t h grade. He expressed reservations about the departnent's
going into schools wth a particular philosophy, as opposed to
presenting information that is scientifically based.

Nunber 1735

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT said this neeting was an overview to
hear about the departnent's responsibilities and an opportunity
to ask questions. He suggested the conmttee work to correct
problens at a later tine.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO indicated that he felt obligated to put
forth questions and get sone answers regarding his concerns.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF stated his understanding that the departnent
will work wunder the new governor's direction. He nentioned
maxi mum sust ai ned yield and protecting the environnent.

Number 1990

DOUG MECUM Director, D vision of Comrercial Fisheries, Al aska
Department of Fish and Game, provided a handout of the 2003
overview and key acconplishnents for the division. He
hi ghlighted areas of personal use; subsistence nanagenent;
managenent of waters and research up to 200 mles out; shellfish

and groundfish; and the salnobn treaty negotiations. He
i ndi cated the division's budget is $124 mllion, with 80 percent
comng from the general fund. He said biologists have seen a
decline of a billion-dollar salnmon industry over the |ast
several years. He indicated that the halibut [population] went
from130 mllion to 140 mllion fish, and currently, it's at its
| owest value, which is half of recent 5-year val ues. He spoke
on the subsistence issue, navigable waters, and the future of
maricul ture. He indicated passage of HB 208 required DNR

[ Depart ment of Natural Resources] to have [80] sites but that it
nom nat ed 190 sites.

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE i nquired about current sites for geoduck
farm ng and asked how successful they have been.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- February 10, 2003



MR. MECUM responded that three permts had been issued out of
the several that have been applied for. He anticipated that up
to 20 will be permitted, but they are in the initial stage.

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE brought up a |lawsuit pending over a denia
of a permt. She indicated the estimted cost is $4 to $5
mllion. She offered her belief that comobn stock was
transferred with the permts and indicated the issue is in the
Al aska Suprene Court.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE di scussed the subsistence board' s decision
on subsi stence use for cash for the [Yukon-Kuskokw nm Region and
the need to inplenent nore commercial fisheries.

MR. MECUM said the board has not finalized it's position on the
rul e, but he thinks they shoul d appeal the decision.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked who devel ops the division's mssions.
He indicated that the board should work very closely with the
| egi sl ature.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked about devel oping test fisheries in
Sout heast Al aska for geoducks, sea cucunbers, and sea urchins.

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK brought up the tax relief issue for those
fishermen who are not able to make their tax paynents.

MR. MECUM offered to speak with the Departnment of Revenue and
noted that there are 14 pieces of current |legislation that
address this issue, such as the "buy-back" tax relief.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO stated that he would have questions for
Kevin Duffy regarding the guiding principles and scientific
integrity he has worked under for the |last 21 years.

MR. HEPLER spoke about the division's $30-nillion budget [and
i ndi cated] that no general funds are used; the division enploys
21 field officers; oversees three hatcheries, which conmbine both
private and nonprivate entities; and is looking to develop nore
sites and have nore boat | aunches.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked if they are also responsible for
training [Fish & WIdlife Protection troopers] and inquired
about the survey or study that was done.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN nentioned resident and nonresident fishing
| i censes and asked about the fees collected.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- February 10, 2003



MR. HEPLER answered that it was nearly inpossible to break out
the fee amount on the different types of licenses. Sone are for
one to three days, and sone people purchase a king sal non stanp;
the revenues are three to one.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF nentioned the Chris Strauss (ph) infornal
program and [indicated the progran] is not being funded.

REPRESENTATI VE HEINZE talked about training public safety
of ficers on fish protection and regul ati ons regar di ng
vi ol ati ons.

CO CHAI R FATE asked if the nunbers are cut, how would it affect
the enforcenent program because it doesn't entail managenent and
sci ence.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked if they had seen the white paper that
referenced the survey and staying away from catch-and-rel ease
fishing for early-run king salnmon, with field notes for Mary
[ Pete] .

MR. MECUM i ndi cated he woul d provide nunbers on licensing to al
nenber s.

Nunber 2749

MARY PETE, Director, Division of Subsistence, Al aska Depart nent
of Fish and Gane, discussed various aspects of the division and
indicated that it contains a research division, which nakes
recormendations to the Board of Fisheries and Board of Gane.
She said a technical paper series covering baseline studies,
conplete with social and econom c issues, and the information is
avai l able from the 1980s. The division's staff consists of 28
full-time enployees and 60 to 70 part-tine enployees. I t
nonitors harvests across the state. She indicated the budget
consists of $224,000 out of the general fund, $1 nmillion in
[ Alaska Industrial Developnent and Export Authority (Al DEA)]
recei pts, $100,000 from inter-agencies, $70,000 from (indisc.),
and $2.2 mllion in federal dollars; the division acts as a
pass-through to the community for contract doll ars.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked about personal -use issues,
specifically, the dipnet fishery in Chitna and neeting criteria
for traditional use, using the definition of "customary | ong-
term and not commercial, which neets the state's criteria. He
indicated information was collected in 1984; over 500 permt

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- February 10, 2003



holders in Chitna and dennallen were interviewed; and the
report was submitted to the board and had to neet pretty high
criteria. He asked if there is new information to reconsider
t he finding.

M5. PETE said yes, a 2000 survey and interview defined the
criteria under "Sections 1, 3, and 8," wth Section 1 being
"customary,"” Section 3 being intergenerational know edge, and
Section 8 allowing for diversity of uses. She discussed whet her
the pattern neets the established criteria and suggested the
board believed the pattern did not neet the criteria for
subsi st ence use.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO requested further information on Project
W LD.

Number 2299
MATT ROBUS, Acting Director, Division of WIdlife Conservation

Al aska Departnment of Fish and Gane, said the division has 260
enpl oyees wth 23 locations around the state, including 4 main

headquarters and 18 regional offices. He indicated there is a
$27-m | 1ion budget: $32,000 cones from the general fund, and
the rest conmes from user-paid organizations and waterfow
stanps, licenses, and fees. He indicated the regulatory system

is nonitored by area biologists; they oversee status of wldlife
popul ations, work with the Board of Gane to manage hunts and
drawi ngs, and work with the Tier Il permts. He indicated the
wor kl oad increased wth federal prograns, which sonetines have
different rules and goals; the division also has an educationa

program with grants from Washi ngton, D.C The wildlife program

i ncludes economc opportunities, inproving tourism rural
vill ages, and overseeing nonganme research on animals |ike sage
grouse, sea lions, black-tailed ground hog, and so forth. He

indicated they receive $6 mllion to $7 mllion from Pittman-
Robertson funds, $4 million from WCRP [WIdlife Conservation
Restoration Prograni, and $4 to $6 mllion from Congress in
speci al grants.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE comented on viewing wldlife as an industry
within the state and wanted to know if ADF&G was receiving any
noney for this.

MR. ROBUS expl ai ned that the departnment receives a snall anount

of funding for things such as the Round I|sland Sanctuary, MNei
Ri ver, and Pack Creek in Southeast Al aska.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- February 10, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG suggested that $300,000 conmes from
[ ADF&G ; federal noney is becomng available, and they can
garner funds from nonconsunptive users that can be used to natch
ot her federal dollars.

MR. ROBUS said sonme funds are available with a one-to-three
mat ch, and suggested it's very conplicated. He indicated sone
of the funding is 50:50. He said $250,000 conmes from the
general fund; $30,000 is for gathering data on the ferret,
prairie dog, grouse, et cetera, - for wildlife that may not have
enough information collected to be able to say they are in fair
shape. For exanple, they are | ooking at harbor seals to be able
to argue biological status. He indicated another issue is the
governor's reorgani zational nove for [the Division of Habitat
and Restoration] to DNR Title 16 provides that the division
will protect, nmaintain, restore, and enhance |ands and allow for
responsi bl e use; these lands include refuges, critical habitat
areas, special areas, and special projects.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF discussed the habitat study and the
nmet hodol ogy used for collecting data on stream bank restoration
reports, and tal ked about the use of "319 funds".

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE asked for background information on the
Al aska Coastal Managenent Program (ACVP).

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA postul ated questions regarding how the
reorgani zati onal nove would be nade and asked about oversi ght of
the permtting of |land and water use under Title 16.

MR. ROBUS stated that there are 35 positions noving to DNR and
21 will remain with ADF&G The Kachemak Bay Critical Habitat
Area and the EXXON Val dez settlenents would be staying with the
division as well. It is possible that up to as many as 50
positions will be cut.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF expressed concerns over habitat and king
salnon early runs, and wanted to know how nmany pernts [are
i ssued] per year and the turnaround tine. He also wanted to
know how many are deni al s.

MR. ROBUS, in response, said about 15 to 17 days on average and
that he wasn't sure about the nunmber of denials, but felt it was
| ow.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF indicated he thought it was only 15 or 16
deni al s.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 1- February 10, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG said they are required to approve
permts yearly.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO addressed [Ms. Pete] and reiterated the
need to strike a balance in Al aska. He asked about the need to
grow nore noose if there is a problemwith too few noose or if
the problemis the quality of the habitat.

DI ANE COTE, Executive Director, Board of Fisheries, Board
Support Section, Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane, explained
they al so have sone oversight of game, but nostly deal wth fish
i ssues. She indicated the board includes admnistration and
techni cal support; is responsible for public notice of board
meetings, and other general duties; neets four to five tines a
year; and has six full-tinme enployees that work closely with an
advi sory conm ttee and provide support. There are 81 comittees
with about 900 seasonal persons all across the state, and the
board depends on public opinion to nmake deci sions.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA nentioned the Ilength of the board
neetings and said several of her constituents would like the
board to consider managing its time better.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked about the nakeup of the boards
and suggested a broad geographi cal nmakeup woul d work best.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

There were no announcenents.
COW TTEE ACTI ON

The comm ttee took no action.
ADJ QURNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Commttee was adjourned at 2:36 p.m

NOTE: The neeting was recorded and handwitten |log notes were
t aken. A copy of the tape(s) and |log notes may be obtained by
contacting the House Records Ofice at State Capitol, Room 3,
Juneau, Alaska 99801 (rmailing address), (907) 465-2214, and
after adjournnment of the second session of the Twenty-Third
Al aska State Legislature this information may be obtained by
contacting the Legislative Reference Library at (907) 465-3808.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- February 10, 2003



